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FeoraL ELECTION commission — QENCITIVE

In the Matter of’ )

)
Service Employees” International Union and ) MUR 6124

Service Employees’ International Union )
Commiittee on Political Education and Anna )
Burger. in her official capacity as treasurer )
STATEMENT OF REASONS
Chairman MATTHEW S. PETERSEN, Vice Chair CYNTHIA L. BAUERLY,
Commissioners CAROLINE C. HUNTER, DONALD F. McGAHN II,
and ELLEN L. WEINTRAUB
L. INTRODUCTION
This matter arises out of a complaint alleging that the Service Employees

International Union (“SEIU™) amended its constitution to include a provision that
imposes financial consequences on local unions that do not meet the SEIU"s annual
tundraising goals for the SEIU's separate segregated fund. SEIU Committee on Political
Education ("SEIU COPE™). Specifically, the complaint alleges that this provision.
section 18a of Article XV, constitutes a financial reprisal or a threat thereof by SEIU in
violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)}(3)(A). a provision of the Federal Election Campaign Act
of 1971. as amended (“the Act™). Further, the complaint alleges that SEIU COPE made
contributions or expenditures using funds obtained through coercion, in violation of
2US.C. § 441b(b)(3) and 11 C.F.R. § 114,5(a). Based on the available information, on
April 27. 2010. we voted to dismiss this matter as a matter of prosecutorial discretion and
close the file.! See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831 (1985).

1I. FACTS

The complaint states that at the 2008 SEIU convention. SEIU amended section

18a of Article XV of the SEIU constitution. entitled ~Duties of Local Unions,™ to impose

! Commissioner Walther dissented.
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a financial penalty on local unions that fail to meet the “annual SEIU COPE fundraising
obligation.” The provision states:

Section 18a. Every U.S. Local Union shall contribute an
annual amount equivalent to at least $6.00 per member per
year or as determined annually by the International
Executive Board to support the overall SEIU political
education and action program. This annual SEIU C.O.P.E.
tfundraising obligation may be satisfied by voluntary
member contributions to SEIU C.O.P.E. or a designated
organization approved by the International President or a
combination thereof. All contributions to SEIU C.O.P.E.
collected by local unions shall be sent to SEIU C.O.P.E.
Any contributions in excess of $6.00 per member per year
or such other amount as determined by the Intenational
Executive Board shall be returned to the local union for its
political program. If a local Union fails to meet its annual
SEIU C.O.P.E. fundraising obligation, it shall contribute an
amount in local union funds equal to the deficiency plus
50%, or such other amount determined by the International
Executive Board. to support the overall SEIU political
education and action program.

b. A goal of every local union shall be to enroll and

maintain at least 20 percent of its members as voluntary

participants in an employer check-off or regular deduction

program assigned to SEIU C.O.P.E. or to an organization

approved by the International President.
See Text of Amended Section 18 of Article XV. Complaint at 5. The SEIU Constitution
and Bylaws, including the relevant provision. are available to the public through the
SEIU’s website at http://www.seiu.org/a/ourunion/constitution-and-bylaws.php (last
accessed on February 25. 2010).

In response to the complaint. SEIU argues that the complaint fails to state any

basis for tfinding that the 2008 amendment to the SEIU constitution violates the Act.

SEIU Responsc at 2. As background. SEIU asserts that the provision incorporates a long-

standing SEIU policy from as early as 2000. /d. at 2. Robert Hauptmann Decl. at § 3.
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SEIU turther asserts that notwithstanding this policy. no SEIU members have filed a
complaint. except for the complaint in MUR 5437. where the Commission took no
turther action after conducting an investigation. finding ~a lack of evidence to
substantiate and quantity any potential violations of the Act.” /d. at 2: see General
Counsel's Report #3. dated April 18. 2007 and Certification dated April 24. 2007."

SEIU also argues that “there is no reason to assume™ that the provision at issue
might lead local unions to use coercion to obtain contributions or that the provision
would be sufficient by itself to find a violation of the Act. SEIU Response at 2. SEIU
asserts that local unions can easily satisfy the SEIU COPE fundraising obligation. stating:
“Assuming an average annual contribution of $48.00 per member. only 1/8"™ of a local's
members need contribute to COPE for the union to meet the $6.00 per member goal.”
adding that Local 150, where Ms. Glass is employed, has easily me1 the fundraising
obligation. /d. SEIU also asserts that the provision at issue “encourages SEIU local
unions to raise voluntary contributions™ and that such fundraising is legal under
Commission regulations, noting that unions may include a suggested guideline for
contributions and may also encourage contributions by sponsoring fundraising events.
Id. at 2-3.

SEIU asserts that it complies fully with Commission regulations to ensure the
voluntariness of contributions by informing its members that they are not required to
contribute to SEIU COPE as a condition of membership in the union, that members may

contribute more or less than any suggested amount. and that contributions are for political

® MUR 5437 involved allegations that a local union had coerced its members to contribute to SEIU COPF
and forced its employees to work for political campaigns. See Factual and Legal Analysis (SEIU/SEIU
COPE) and Certification dated September 29. 2004.
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purposes. SEIU Response at 3. In addition. its members must aftirmatively agree to
make a contribution (i.e.. no reverse checkoft is used). /4. SEIU notes that the complaint
does not allege that SEIU has failed to comply with these voluntariness requirements.
which ensure that the fundraising obligation in the constitution does not result in
involuntary contributions. /d. Finally, SEIU asserts that the complaint does not identify
any SEIU member who has been coerced into contributing to SEIU COPE because of the
amendment or for other reasons, and that Ms. Glass does not allege that she has
contributed to. or has ever been solicited to contribute to. SEIU COPE. /d. at 2.
IIl. ANALYSIS

The Act prohibits any labor organization from making "a contribution or an
expenditure in connection with any election at which presidential . . . electors or a
Senator or Representative in . . . Congress are to be voted for...." 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
However. a labor organization, such as the SEIU, may use its general treasury funds to
establish. administer. and solicit contributions to a separate segregated fund (“SSF™) to be
utilized for political purposes. 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(2)(C); 11 C.F.R. § 114.5(b). For any
union federation with which a local union is affiliated, the local union may act as a
collecting agent™ when it engages in collecting and transmitting contributions on behalf
of the federation™s SSF. 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(b). A collecting agent may solicit
contributions to the affiliated or connected SSF trom those individuals who are eligible
for solicitation. 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(c).

Solicitations for or from an SSF must meet the requirements of voluntariness set
out at 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(3) and 11 C.F.R. § 114.5(a). Specifically. a solicitation must:

(1) not secure contributions by physical force. job discrimination. financial reprisals. or
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the threat thereof; or by dues or fees required for membership in the labor union, required
as a condition of employment, or by funds obtained in a commercial transaction: (2)
inform those solicited of the political purposes of such a fund at the time of solicitation:
and (3) inform those solicited that refusal to contribute shall not result in any reprisals.
An SSF is prohibited from making a contribution or expenditure by utilizing money or
anything of value secured by, inter alia, financial reprisals or the threat thereof. 2 U.S.C.
§ 441b(b)(3); see also 11 C.F.R. § 114.5(a). We do not believe that a provision in a
union’s governing documents that imposes financial consequences on its local
organizations (which act as collecting agents for the union’s SSF) when such
organizations fail to raise certain levels of contributions from their members constitutes a
direct solicitation of the union’s members, nor does it constitute a financial reprisal or the
threat thereof to the members themselves. Although not dispositive to our analysis, we
also note that although the complainant is a member of a SEIU local union, she does not
allege that she was herself coerced, nor does she allege that any other union members
were coerced to make contributions through this constitutional provision.

For these reasons, as a matter of prosecutorial discretion. we voted to dismiss the
allegations that SEIU improperly solicited contributions to a separate segregated fund and
the solicitation was coercive , in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(3). and that SEIU COPE
and Anna Burger, in her official capacity as treasurer, made contributions or expenditures
using funds obtained through coercion, in violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b)(3). See

Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831 (1985).
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
) MUR 6124

Service Employees International Union )

SEIU on Political Educationand Anna )

Burger, in her official capacity as )

treasurer )
CERTIFICATION

I, Lisa Chapman, recording secretary for the Federal Election Commission executive
session on April 27, 2010, do hereby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of 5-1 to
dismiss MUR 6124, close the file and approve the appropriate letters.

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen and Weintraub voted affirmatively
for the decision. Commissioner Walther dissented.

Z Z ¥ é zz N

Recording Secretary of the Commission




10044271560

FEDFRAIL. ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 2046

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

18 2010
National Right to Work Legal Defense MAY 18
and Education Foundation, Inc.
8001 Braddock Road
Springfield, VA 22160
RE: MUR 6124
SEIU/SEIU-COPE
Dear Sir or Madam:

This letter is in reference to the complaint your organization filed with the Federal
Election Conunission on October 27, 2008, concerning the Service Employees Intemational
Union (*SEIU™) and the SEIU Committee on Politieal Education and Anna Burger, in her
official capacity as treasurcr, (“SEIU COPE™). Based on that complaint and the response,
the Commission, on April 27, 2010, voted to dismiss this matter and close the file. A Statement
of Reasons providing a basis for the Commission’s decision will follow.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003).

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this aetion, See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

If you have any questions, please contact Audra Hale-Maddox, the atlorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) §94-1650.

Sincerely,

Bt DN

Peter G. Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGION, D.C 20463

Anna Burger, Treasurer

Service Employees International Union MAY 1 8 2018
Commiltec on Political Education

1800 Massachusetts Avenue, NW

Washington, D.C. 20036

RE: MUR 6124
SEIU-COPE

Dear Ms. Burger:

On November 6, 2008, the Federal Eleetion Commission notified the SEIU
Committee on Political Education and you, in your official capacity as treasurer, (“SEIU
COPE”) of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Eleetion
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act”). A copy of the complaint was forwardcd
to you at that time.

Upon further rcview of the allegations contained in the complaint, the
Commission, on April 27, 2010, voled to dismiss this matter and close the file. A
Statement of Reasons providing a basis for the Commission’s dccision will follow.

Documcnts related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.
See Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dee. 18, 2003).

If you have any questions, please contact Audra Hale-Maddox, the attorney
assigncd to this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Wt N>

Peter G. Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASLIINGTON, N.C. 20463

Michael B. Trister
Lichtman, Trister & Ross, PLLC

1666 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. MAY 1 8 2010
Fifth Floor
Washington, D.C. 20009
RE: MURG6124
SEIU

Dear Mr. Trister:

On November 6, 2008, the Federal Election Commission notified your client, the Service
LEmployees International Union (“SEIU™) of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of
the Federal Election Cainpaign Act of 1971, as amcended ("the Act"). A copy of the complaint
was forwarded to your client at that time.

Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, and information
supplied by your client, the Commission, on April 27, 2010, voted to dismiss this matter and
close the file. A Statement of Reasons providing a basis for the Commission’s decision will
follow.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closcd Enforccment and Related Files,
68 Fcd. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003).

If you have any qucstions, please contaet Audra Hale-Maddox, the attorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sinccrely,

Kt e

Pcter G. Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel
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FEDERAL ELEC TTON COMMISSION

WASI INCTON, ND.C 20463

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETU PT REQUESTED
Karen Glass MAY 1 8 2010

Mukwonago, W1 53149

RE: MUR 6124
SEIU/SEIU-COPE

Dear Ms. Glass:

This leuter is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election
Commission on October 27, 2008, conccrning the Service Employees International Union
(“SEIU™) and the SETU Committee on Political Education and Anna Burger, in her official
capacity as treasurer, (“SEIU COPE”). Bascd on thal complaint and the response,
the Commission, on April 27, 2010, voted to dismiss this matter and close the file. A Statement
of Reasons providing a basis for thc Commission’s decision will [ollow.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003).

The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as ainended, allows a complainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

If you have any questions, please contact Audra Hale-Maddox, the attorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

PETR—

Peter G. Blumberg
Assistant Gencral Counscl
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Michacl Casaretto WAY 18 2010
Virginia Beach, VA 23464
RE: MUR 6124
SETU/SEIU-COPE

Dear Mr. Casarctlo:

This letter is in reference Lo the complaint you filed with the Federal Eleetion
Commission on October 27, 2008, concerning the Serviec Employees Intcrnational Union
(“SETU”) and the SEIU Committee on Political Education and Anna Burger, in her official
capacity as treasurer, (“SEIUJ COPE"). Based on that complaint and the response,
the Commission, on April 27, 2010, voted to dismiss this matter and close the file. A Statemcnt
ol Reasons providing a basis for the Commission’s decision will follow,

Documcnts rclated 1o the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcerent and Related Files,
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003).

‘The Federal Elcction Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a eomplainant to seek
judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(8).

If you have any questions, please contact Audra Hale-Maddox, the attorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Wt DS

Peter G. Blumberg
Assistant General Counsel
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